
Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

1 
 

                                                    AGENDA 
CRAVEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SESSION 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 7, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVE AGENDA 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 16, 2013 REGULAR SESSION 
 
1. PUBLIC HEARING FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 
2. PETITION OF CITIZEN:  Ray Griffin 

 
3. PROCLAMATIONS/RESOLUTIONS 

A. Farm-City Day:  Commissioner Mark 
B. Young Marines/Red Ribbon Week:  Commissioner Sampson 

 
4. ADOPTION OF RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE AND AMENDMENTS:   

Gwendolyn Bryan, Clerk to the Board 
A. Administration 
B. Register of Deeds 
C. Tax 
 
DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS 

 
5. CARTS REQUEST TO SET PUBLIC HEARING:  Kelly Walker, Transportation 

Coordinator 
 
6. EMERGENCY SERVICES – VANCEBORO RESCUE REQUEST:  Keith Morris, 

Captain; Stanley Kite, Emergency Services Director 
 

7. SOCIAL SERVICES BUDGET AMENDMENT:  Alfreda Stout, Assistant DSS 
Director 
 

8. TAX – RELEASES AND REFUNDS:  Ronnie Antry, Tax Administrator 
 

 
 

 
9. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:  Timothy Downs, Economic Development Director 



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

2 
 

A. Accept Comprehensive Economic Development Strategic Plan 
B. Online Tool for Comprehensive Inventory of Available Buildings and Land 

within Craven County 
 
 
10. PLANNING:  Don Baumgardner, Planning Director 

A. Joint Resolution Agreements (Tall Structures Ordinance) 
B. Subdivision for Approval 

 
11. APPOINTMENTS 

A. Pending 
B. Current  
C. Upcoming 

 
12. COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:  Jim Hicks 
 
13. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT:  Jack Veit 

 
14. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 

 
15. CLOSED SESSION 

 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

3 
 

Presenter:       
Agenda Item No. 1     
Board Action Required:  No    

 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

A public hearing was advertised on September 23, 2013 to receive public comment 
concerning the sale of real property for economic development purposes. 

 
 

Board Action:  Receive information 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

4 
 

     Presenter: Ray Griffin     
      Agenda Item No. 2     
      Board Action Required:  No    

 
 
 
 
 
 

PETITION OF CITIZENS:  RAY GRIFFIN 
 

Mr. Griffin wishes to address the Board regarding the government shut-down. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Action:  Receive information 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

5 
 

      Presenters:   Commissioners Mark and Sampson  
      Agenda Item No. 3     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATIONS 
 
 
A. FARM – CITY DAY 
 
Craven County Agricultural Extension is requesting that the Board adopt the 
proclamation, shown as Attachment #3.A., recognizing November 2, 2013 as Farm-City 
Day in Craven County. 
 
Board Action:  Consider adoption of proclamation 
 
B. YOUNG MARINES 
 
The New Bern Young Marines participate in Red Ribbon Week by making presentations 
about Drug Demand Reduction to the local schools in Craven County.  These young 
marines stand before their peers and express their commitment to live a drug-free life.  
This year, they have requested a proclamation from the Board of Commissioners to 
assist with their presentations.  (Attachment #3.B.) 
 
 
Board Action:  Consider adoption of proclamation 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

6 
 

      Presenter: Gwendolyn Bryan    
      Agenda Item No. 4     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADOPTION OF RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE AND AMENDMENTS 
 
 

A. ADMINISTRATION 
 
On July 1, 2013 the Board formally adopted the newly revised Records Retention 
Schedule for County management which was issued by the N.C. Department of Cultural 
Resources/Division of Archives and Records.  Since then an amendment has been 
issued for several of the schedules, including County Management, which also require 
formal adoption.  The amended pages appear as Attachment #4.A. 
 
B. REGISTER OF DEEDS 
 
Attachment #4.B. contains the Executive Summary and signature page for the revised 
Register of Deeds schedule which was issued within the last year in addition to the 
recent amendments.  The Register of Deeds was aware that amendments were being 
developed and held the new schedule for adoption along with the amendments. 
 
C. TAX 
 
Amendments to the Records Retention and Disposition Schedule for Tax have also 
been issued.  (Attachment #4.C.) 
 
 
 
Board Action:  Adopt the schedule and amendments to guide staff in the 
disposition of records in these departments according to statutory requirements. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

7 
 

      Presenter: Kelly Walker     
      Agenda Item No. 5     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  CARTS REQUEST TO SET PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Kelly Walker, Transportation Coordinator, is requesting that a public hearing be set on 
October 21st at 8:30 a.m. for the 5311 Community Transportation Program (CTP). This 
is one of the grants that CARTS applies for each year 

 
Board Action:  Set public hearing 
 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

8 
 

      Presenter: Stanley Kite, Keith Morris   
      Agenda Item No. 6     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 
DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  EMERGENCY SERVICES – VANCEBORO RESCUE 

REQUEST 
 

Attachment #6 is a letter from Vanceboro Rescue Captain, Keith Morris, concerning the 
Squad’s intention to apply for a DOI Rescue Fund Grant.  The County match for the 
grant was included in the Squad’s FY 13-14 budget request. 

 
 

 
Board Action:  Consider approval of match if grant request is funded. 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

9 
 

      Presenter: Alfreda Stout     
      Agenda Item No. 7     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  SOCIAL SERVICES BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 
 

Attachment #7 contains a budget amendment and supporting documentation for funding 
received from the Eastern Carolina Council of Governments Area Agency on Aging for 
the Title III D Health Promotion grant. 

 
 
 

Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendment 
 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

10 
 

      Presenter: Ronnie Antry     
      Agenda Item No. 8     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  TAX – RELEASES AND REFUNDS 
 

Craven County Tax Administrator, Ronnie Antry, will present the routine requests for tax 
releases and refunds contained in Attachment #8 for the Board’s approval. 
 
 
 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve tax releases and refunds 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

11 
 

      Presenter: Timothy Downs     
      Agenda Item No. 9     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

A. ACCEPT COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRAGETIC PLAN 
 
Craven County embarked on a major strategic planning effort over a year ago to 
develop a comprehensive economic development strategic plan to establish the 
foundation for reorganizing its approach to economic development. Through many 
hours or work by consultants, County staff, and volunteers as well as critical input from 
stakeholders all over the County, we now have a final Plan that identifies the goals and 
objectives that were developed through the process and recommends specific action 
items to accomplish those goals. We will now take these recommendations and develop 
and implement our own specific work plan that will include specific milestones and 
outcomes.  (Attachment #9.A) 
 

Board Action:  Accept final Comprehensive Economic Development Strategic 
Plan 

 
B. ONLINE TOOL FOR COMPREHENSIVE INVENTORY OF AVAILABLE 

BUILDINGS AND LAND WITHIN CRAVEN COUNTY 
 
One of the top priorities for economic development in Craven County is the 
implementation of a comprehensive inventory of available buildings and land within 
Craven County. Through collaboration with the cities of New Bern and Havelock and the 
support of local commercial realtors from the Neuse River Region Association of 
Realtors, we have identified an online tool that will provide what we need and much 
more. The tool, called ZoomProspector, is developed by GIS Planning, the inventor of 
the first GIS tool for economic development over a decade ago. We began an effort to 
internally develop a tool to do the job, but this product is well beyond what we could do 
in house. The $7,000 needed to fund Craven County’s portion of the cost has been 
identified from the current Economic Development budget.  (Attachment #9.B.) 
 

Board Action:  None   

 
 

  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

12 
 

      Presenter: Don Baumgardner    
      Agenda Item No. 10     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  PLANNING 
 

A. JOINT RESOLUTION AGREEMENTS (TALL STRUCTURES ORDINANCE) 
 
As you may be aware, the Towns of River Bend and Trent Woods have asked Craven 
County to enforce our Tall Structure Ordinance within their respective jurisdictions.  
When we developed the county ordinance we contoured the ordinance to allow it to be 
enforceable within other jurisdictions. Attached you will find the executed Joint 
Resolution Agreements from the Towns of River Bend and Trent Woods. In order to 
move forward with this request the Board would have to approve the Joint Resolutions 
and authorize the Chairman to execute the document. 

 
 

Board Action:  Approve Joint Resolution for enforcement of County Tall Structure 
Ordinance within the Towns of River Bend and Trent Woods, authorizing 
Chairman to sign.   
 
B. SUBDIVISION FOR APPROVAL 
 
The Planning Board met and recommended the following subdivision for approval: 
 
Jacqueline Dobson & Maurice Tucker Division - Final 
 
-Property is owned by Lester Kenneth Garris II and surveyed by Willard R. Hall, PL 
-Property is located within Twp 1, off of NC 1 
-Parcel ID 1-076-16 
-Subdivision contains 1 lot on 2.50 acres 
-Lot proposed to be served by county water and an existing septic system 
 
Board Action: A motion to approve the subdivision and authorize the Chairman to 
sign. 
 
           
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

13 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 11     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

A. PENDING 
B. CURRENT 
C. UPCOMING 
 
 
 
 
Board Action:  If the intent is to make appointments effective immediately, a 
motion to waive the one meeting waiting requirement would be in order. 



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

14 
 

A. PENDING APPOINTMENT(S): 

 
FIREMEN’S RELIEF FUND BOARD OF TRUSTEES       
AUTHORIZATION: NCGS 58-84-30 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To safeguard firefighters in active service and dependent members of  
        their families from financial loss resulting from sickness, injury or loss  
        of life  suffered while in performance of his or her duties as a   
        firefighter. 
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:  TYPE: 
5 per department   2 appointed by Board of Commissioners; 2    
     appointed by the department; 1 appointed by   
     Commissioner of Insurance 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
           
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: As necessary        
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Term(s) ending:   Ralph Roeland - #6 (Initial Appointment 1999) 
         
        
No applications on file   
 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

15 
 

NURSING HOME ADVISORY COMMITTEE        
AUTHORIZATION: N.C.G.S.131E-115 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Work to maintain the intent of the Nursing Home Patients Bill of  
        Rights within the licensed homes in the County; to promote community 
        involvement and cooperation with domiciliary homes to ensure quality  
        care for the elderly.        
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
7-12      Dictated by the number of homes in the county; 
      homes have right to recommend 25% of appointees 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
Cannot be employed by or have a relative in an adult care home.      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Quarterly, beginning in March, third Wednesday, 10:00 a.m.  
      
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   
 
Term(s) Ending:  Rachelle Martin (Initial appointment 2010) 
    (No longer serving and needs to be replaced.) 
 
No applications on file. 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

16 
 

REGIONAL AGING ADVISORY COMMITTEE       
AUTHORIZATION:       
MISSION/FUNCTION: The committee advocates on behalf of the senior population of COG  
Region P, and as advocates for seniors in their respective counties. It reviews and comments on  
laws, policies, actions and programs that affect older adults.       
    
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
27      3 Representatives of each county in Region P 
                 
                 
                 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
Interest in issues affecting the senior population; older adults who are participants in aging 
services, representatives of older adults, older minority individuals, nutrition project 
representatives, general public, local elected officials      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: First Monday of January, April, July and October, 10:00 a.m.  
      
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Term(s) ending:   Gertha Williams (Deceased) 
    
No applications on file. 
 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

17 
 

 
JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL (JCPC) 
AUTHORIZATION:  N.C.G.S. 147-33.66 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To assess the needs of juveniles in the community, evaluate the 
adequacy of resources available and develop or propose ways to address unmet needs. 
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:  TYPE: 
25 (maximum)    From among the following categories, or in some   
     instances, the designees of the specified position:   
     school superintendent, chief of police, sheriff, district  
     attorney, chief court counselor, area mental health director,  
     social services director, county manager, substance abuse  
     professional, member of faith community, county   
     commissioner, person under the age of 21, juvenile defense 
     attorney, chief district court judge, member of the business  
     community, local health director, non-profit    
     representative, parks and recreation representative,   
     up to seven additional members appointed by the   
     Board of Commissioners 
      
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
LENGTH OF TERMS:  2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE:  2nd Monday of the month 12:30 p.m.        
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Terms ending:    Lillie Hayes (Deceased) 
     Tony Lee (initial appointment 2011) 
     Carol Mattocks (initial appointment 2001) 
     Alvin Burney (Deceased) 
No applications on file 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

18 
 

B.  CURRENT APPOINTMENTS 
 

 
FIREMEN’S RELIEF FUND BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
AUTHORIZATION: NCGS 58-84-30 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To safeguard firefighters in active service and dependent members of  
        their families from financial loss resulting from sickness, injury or loss  
        of life  suffered while in performance of his or her duties as a   
        firefighter. 
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
5 per department    2 appointed by Board of Commissioners; 2   
      appointed by the department; 1 appointed by  
      Commissioner of Insurance 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
           
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: As necessary        
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Term(s) ending:   Anthony Elliott, Twp. 6 (initial appointment 2011) 
 
No applications on file 
 



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

19 
 

INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES POLLUTION CONTROL FINANCING AUTHORITY  
AUTHORIZATION: By resolution of Board of Commissioners 7/6/1976 
MISSION/FUNCTION:      
         
         
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
7      Qualified electors 
                 
                 
                 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
           
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 6 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Annual Meeting on 2nd Tuesday in October; otherwise, as needed 
        
 
COMPENSATION: No X : Yes   Specify:       
 
Term(s) ending:   Gary Essex (initial appointment 2001) 
 
No applications on file 
 



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

20 
 

JURY COMMISSION         
AUTHORIZATION: NCGS Chapter 9-1       
MISSION/FUNCTION: Selects list of suitable citizens from among those eligible to serve  
    as jurors for a term of court 
    
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
1       (Appointed by County Commissioners)     
1       (Appointed by Sr. Resident Superior Court Judge) 
1       (Appointed by Clerk of Superior Court)     
                 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
Must be qualified voter of Craven County      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years     
 
MEETING SCHEDULE:             
 
COMPENSATION: No  Yes   Specify:       
 
 
Term(s) ending:   George Griffin (initial appointment 1999) 
Application(s) on file:  George Griffin (Attachment #  11.B.) 



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

21 
 

C. UPCOMING APPOINTMENTS 
 
 
November – None 
 
December 
 
Health     David Baxter, Optometrist (initial appointment 2011) 
     David Stevick, Engineer (initial appointment 1998) 
     Robert Whitley, Dentist (initial appointment 2004) 
 
Firemen’s Relief Fund  Daniel Murphy, West New Bern (initial appointment 2011) 
 
JCPC     Joel Grimm (initial appointment 1996) 
     Toussaint Summers, N.B. Police (initial appointment 2011)  
 
Havelock Library   Lossie Carter (initial appointment 1996 
     Joanna Wishon (initial appointment 2008) 
     Jennettia Drake (initial appointment 2011)   
 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

22 
 

      Presenter: Jim Hicks     
      Agenda Item No. 12     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    

 
COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 
    
A. Final Approval - Offer to Purchase Real Property (Parcel No. 1-048-14003) 
 
The County previously received a tentative offer to acquire this property by Mr. Fornes 
for the sum of $2,100.  The Board accepted the tentative offer, and it was advertised for 
upset bids.  No upset bids were received.  The proposed deed is attached hereto.  
(Attachment #12.A) 
 
Board Action:  The Board must approve the final sale to Mr. Fornes for the sum of 
$2,100. 
 
B. Final Approval - Offer to Purchase Real Property (Parcel No. 5-008-134) 
 
The County previously received a tentative offer to acquire this property by Mr. Boone, 
for the sum of $9,500.  The Board accepted the tentative offer, and it was advertised for 
upset bids.  Two upset bids were received, with the last upset being submitted by Mr. 
Boone for $12,650.  No further upset bids were received.  The proposed deed is 
attached hereto. (Attachment #12.B) 
 
Board Action:  The Board must approve the final sale to Mr. Boone for the sum of 
$12,650.   
  
C. Craven County Contingency CDBG Sewer Project - River Bend 
 
Craven County, through a CDBG project, installed a sewer line along Old Pollocksville 
Road, adjacent to the Town of River Bend.  The project was entered into under an 
Interlocal Agreement with the Town of River Bend, whereby upon completion, the sewer 
system would be transferred to the Town of River Bend for ownership and operation. 
 
The project is complete.  In accordance with the Interlocal Agreement, the County now 
needs to approve and execute the following documents (which are attached hereto) to 
accomplish the same: (Attachment #12.C) 
 

1. Bill of sale for personal property,  
2. Assignment of all easements, and  
3. Assignment of any warranties.  

 
D. Legal Update - Sirsi vs. Craven-Pamlico-Carteret Regional Library 
 
The County Attorney will update the Board of Commissioners as to the status of this 
lawsuit. 
 



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

23 
 

      Presenter: Jack Veit     
      Agenda Item No. 13     
              

 
 

 
 

COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

A. NCACC VIDEO 
 
County Manager, Jack Veit, will share with the Board a short video which NCACC has 
requested be shown to Commissioners at the first monthly meeting in October.  
(Approximately 4 minutes) 
 
B. WORK SESSION AGENDA 
 
Mr. Veit will discuss with the Board possible items to be discussed at the next work 
session. 
  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

24 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 14     

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
 

  



Agenda Date:      October 7, 2013  
 

25 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 15     

 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
 

The Board will be requested to go into closed session to consult with the County 
Attorney concerning potential litigation, pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 



 
 
 

Craven County Farm-City Day Proclamation 
 
 

WHEREAS, the growth and development of the County and the well-being of all 
its citizens are dependent upon cooperation and exchange between farm and non-farm 
families and businesses; and  
 

WHEREAS, Craven County’s agricultural income makes a significant 
contribution to the economic diversity of our county with a dynamic forestry industry and 
$60-$70 million in farm sales annually; and 
 

WHEREAS, agribusiness is North Carolina’s number one industry, contributing 
$70 billion annually to the State’s economy and employing over 17% of the work force; 
and   
 

WHEREAS, Farm-City Day provides an outstanding opportunity for young 
people in Craven County to become better acquainted with the diversity and importance 
of agriculture in the county and the region; and 
 

WHEREAS, For Craven County to continue to prosper, it is important that farm 
and non-farm residents appreciate and understand each other; and 
 

WHEREAS, All Craven County residents share common needs – food for our 
nourishment, forest products for our shelter and paper, and fiber for clothing and other 
materials. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners does hereby proclaim November 2, 2013 to be Farm-City Day and 
intends that all events associated with Farm-City Day in Craven County be a tremendous 
success.   
 
     This the 7th day of October, 2013 
 
 
     __ 
Scott C. Dacey 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 
 
_________________________________ 
Gwendolyn M. Bryan 
Clerk to the Board 
 



PROCLAMATION: 
RED RIBBON WEEK 

WHEREAS, illegal drugs are a scourge on our society, devastating the 
lives of countless citizens, and destroying the potential of too many of our youth; 
and 

WHEREAS, this plague is also responsible for much of the violent crime 
challenging our communities; and 

WHEREAS, the last week of October is known as Red Ribbon Week and 
honors the memory of Enrique Camarena, a Marine and Drug Enforcement Agent 
who was abducted, tortured and murdered by drug lords in 1985; and 

WHEREAS, his vision and commitment to a drug-free America lives on, 
and is supported by the New Bern Young Marines annually through their Drug 
Demand Reduction Campaign in Craven County Schools. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Craven 
County Board of Commissioners proclaims the week of October 23-31,2013 Red 
Ribbon Week in Craven County and commends the New Bern Young Marines for 
their efforts in this war against illegal drugs. 

Adopted this ih day of October, 2013 

Chairman Scott C. Dacey 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 

Gwendolyn M. Bryan 
Clerk to the Board 



( 

( 

Attachment.#4.A. 

County Management 
Records Retention Schedule Amendment 

Amending the County Management Records Retention and Disposition Schedule published Apri115, 2013. 

STANDARD 4. BUDGET, FISCAL AND PAYROLL RECORDS 

Amending item 3~ Escheat and Unclaimed Property File as shown on substitute page 25. 

STANDARD 11. PERSONNEl. RECORDS 

Amending item 19 EmpJoyee EllglbiHty Records as shown on substitute page 76. 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 

Chief Administrative Officer/ 
County Manager 

Chairman, Bd. County Commissioners 

August 28, 2013 

APPROVED 

;b~'l~~ 
Sarah E. Koonts, Director 
Division of Archives and Records 

·~~~s~rvtf{~ 
Department of Cultural Resources 

County/Region 



STANDARD-4. BUDGET, FISCAL AND PAYROU RECORDS 
ITEM II 

RECORD SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION 

26. DEBT FINANCING RECORDS Destroy in office 3 years after entire issuance has been 26 CFR 1.148-
Jncludes bank statements, reconciliation records, satisfied.* S{d){6)(iii)(E) 
requisitions, and notices of principal and interest due. 

27. DEPOSITS a) Destroy in office official/audit copies after 3 years.* G.S. § 159-32 

b} Destroy in office remaining records after 1 year. 

28. DETAIL REPORT FilE (FINANCIAL RECORDS FOR a) Destroy in office annual reports after 3 years.* 
GENERAL FUND OR GENERAL LEDGER) 

b) Destroy in office all other reports after 1 year. 

29. DIRECT DEPOSIT APPUCATIONS/ AUTHORIZATIONS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete. Comply with applicable 
Includes related records such as bank account confidentiality 
numbers and routing numbers. provisions of G.S. 

§132-1.10{b)(S) 
regarding personal 
identifying information. 

30. DISTRICT INVESTMENT RECORDS Destroy in office after 3 years.* 

31. DONATIONS AND SOLICITATIONS Destroy in office after 1 year. 

32. ESCHEAT AND UNCLAIMED PROPERTY FILE a} Destroy in office after 10 years if report was filed prior to Comply with applicable 
July 16, 2012. * provisions of G.S. 

§116B-60 and §1168-
b) Destroy in office after 5 years if report was filed after July 73. 

16,2012.* 

33. EXPENDITURE REPORTS Destroy in office after 3 years.* 

*See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTIONS, page vi. 
t See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction ~~destroy when administrative value ends. n Please use the space provided. 

25 



STANDARD-11. PERSONNEL RECORDS 
ITEM# 

RECORD SERIES MLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION 

18. EMPLOYEE EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM Destroy in office 3 years after completion, denial, repayment, 
RECORDS or removal from program.* 
Includes records requesting tuition assistance, 
repayments, and other related records. 

See also PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY) item 
45, page83. 

19. EMPLOYEE ELIGIBILITY RECORDS a) Destroy in office certificates, 1-9 forms, and statements, 3 8 USC274a.2 
Includes the United States Immigration and years after individual was hired or 1 year from date of 
Naturalization Services, Employment Eligibility separation, whichever occurs later. 
Verification 0-9) forms. 

b) Destroy in office registers after 2 years. 

20. EMPLOYEE EXIT INTERVIEW RECORDS Destroy in office after 1 year. 

See also PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY) item 
45, page83. 

21. EMPLOYEE HEALTH CERTIFICATES a) Transfer records as applicable to PERSONNEL RECORDS 
Includes health or physical examination reports, or {OFFICIAL COPY) item 45, page 83. 
certificates created in accordance with Title VII and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). b) Destroy in office all other records 2 years after resolution 

of all actions. 

*See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTIONS, page vi. 
t See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction ''destroy when administrative value ends.'' Please use the space provided. 

76 



Attachment #4.B. 

Register of Deeds 
Records Retention Schedule Amendment 

Amending the Register of Deeds Records Retention and Disposition Schedule published October 10, 2012. 

STANDARD 2. BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS 

Amending item 26 Escheat and Unclaimed Property File as shown on substitute page 17. 

STANDARD 5. PERSONNEL RECORDS 

Amending item 18 Employee Eligibility Records as shown on substitute page 39. 
Amending items 36 Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Records, 45 Leave File1 and 46 Leave Without Pay 
File as shown on substitute pages 45 and 47. 

Register of Deeds 

Chairman 
Board of County Commissioners 

August 29, 2013 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 

APPROVED 

ka-R_tv~ 
Sarah E. Koonts/ Director 
Division of Archives and Records 

4n~s~a:i~ 
Department of Cultural Resources 

County 



STANDARD-2: BUDGE~ FISCAL AND PAYROLL RECORDS 
ITEM# 

RECORD SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION 

18. CREDIT CARD AND DEBIT SLIPS Destroy in office after 3 years.* 
Records of payments received from customers in the 
transaction of county business. 

19. CREDIT CARD USE FILE Destroy in office after 1 year.* 

20. DAILY CASH REPORTS Destroy in office after 1 year.* 
Daily status of cash. Reports include receipts, 
disbursements, cash and invested balances. 

21. DAILY DETAIL REPORTS Destroy in office after 1 year.* 

22. DEPOSITS a) Destroy in office official/audit copies after 3 years.* G.S. § 159-32 

b) Destroy in office remaining records after 1 year. 

23. DETAIL REPORT FILE (FINANCIAL RECORDS FOR a) Destroy in office annual reports after 3 years.* 
GENERAL FUND OR GENERAL LEDGER) 

b) Destroy in office all other reports after 1 year. 

24. DIRECT DEPOSIT APPLICATIONS/ AUTHORIZATIONS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete. Comply with applicable 
Includes related records such as bank account confidentiality 
numbers and routing numbers. provisions of G.S. 

§132-1.10(b)(5) 
regarding personal 
identifying information. 

25. DISTRICT INVESTMENT RECORDS Destroy in office after 3 years.* 

26. ESCHEAT AND UNCLAIMED PROPERTY FILE a) Destroy in office after 10 years if report was filed prior to Comply with applicable 
July 16, 2012. * provisions of G.S. 

§1168-60 and §1168-
b) Destroy in office after 5 years if report was filed after July 73. 

16, 2012.* 

*Records may be disposed of following minimum retention period only if released from audits or other official action (excluding litigation). If applicable, see 
Litigation Case File, STANDARD-1. ADMINISTRATIONAND MANAGEMENT RECORDS, item30. 
**Records in this series that are more than 60 years old, or have severe conservation concerns, may be offered to the State Archives of North Carolina for 
Permanent transfer. 
t See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction "destroy when administrative value ends." Please use the space provided. 

17 



STANDARD-S. PERSONNEL RECORDS 
ITEM# 

RECORD SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION 

17. EMPLOYEE EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM Destroy in office 3 years after completion, denial, repayment, 
RECORDS or removal from program.* 
Includes records requesting tuition assistance, 
repayments, and other related records. 

See also PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY) item 
50, page 48. 

18. EMPLOYEE ELIGIBILITY RECORDS a) Destroy in office certificates, 1-9 forms, and statements, 3 8 USC 274a.2 
Includes the United States Immigration and years after individual was hired or 1 year from date of 
Naturalization Services, Employment Eligibility separation, whichever occurs later. 
Verification (1-9) forms. 

b) Destroy in office registers after 2 years. 

19. EMPLOYEE EXIT INTERVIEW RECORDS Destroy in office after 1 year. 

See also PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY) item 
50, page 48. 

20. EMPLOYEE HEALTH CERTIFICATES a) Transfer records as applicable to PERSONNEL RECORDS 29 CFR 1602.31 
Includes health or physical examination reports, or (OFFICIAL COPY) item 50, page 48. 

certificates created in accordance with Title VII and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). b) Destroy in office all other records 2 years after resolution 

of all actions. 

*Records may be disposed of following minimum retention period only if released from audits or other official action (excluding litigation). If applicable, see 
Litigation Case File, STANDARD-1. ADMINISTRATIONAND MANAGEMENT RECORDS, item30. 
**Records in this series that are more than 60 years old, or have severe conservation concerns, may be offered to the State Archives of North Carolina for 
Permanent transfer. 
·r See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction "destroy when administrative value ends." Please use the space provided. 

39 



STANDARD-S. PERSONNEL RECORDS 
ITEM# 

RECORD SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION 

35. EQUAL PAY RECORDS Destroy in office after 2 years. 29 CFR 1620.32 
Includes reports, studies, aggregated or summarized 
data, and similar documentation compiled to comply 
with the Equal Pay Act. 

36. FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) RECORDS Item discontinued. See LEAVE FILE, item 45, page 47. 
Records concerning leave taken, premium payments, 
employer notice, medical examinations considered in 
connection with personnel action, disputes with 
employees over FMLA and other related records. 

37. FRINGE BENEFITS FILE Destroy in office when administrative value ends.t 
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after 

38. GRIEVANCE FILE Destroy in office after 2 years. 
Includes initial complaint, investigations, actions, 
summary, and disposition. May include disciplinary 
correspondence, including email. 

See also DISCIPLINARY FILE item 10, page 36 and 
PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY) item 50, page 
48. 

*Records may be disposed of following minimum retention period only if released from audits or other official action (excluding litigation). If applicable, see 
Litigation Case File, STANDARD-1. ADMINISTRATIONAND MANAGEMENT RECORDS, item30. 
**Records in this series that are more than 60 years old, or have severe conservation concerns, may be offered to the State Archives of North Carolina for 
Permanent transfer. 
t See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction "destroy when administrative value ends." Please use the space provided. 

45 



STANDARD-S. PERSONNEL RECORDS 
ITEM# 

RECORD SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION 

45. LEAVE FILE Destroy in office 3 years after return of employee or 29 CFR 825.110(b)(2)(i) 
Records concerning employee leave, including termination of employment.* 29 CFR 825.SOO(b) 
requests for and approval of sick, vacation, overtime, 
buy-back, shared, donated, military, etc. Includes 
premium payments, employer notice, medical 
examinations considered in connection with personnel 
action, disputes with employees over the Family 
Medical Leave Act (FMLA), and other related records. 

46. LEAVE WITHOUT PAY FILE Item discontinued. See LEAVE FILE, item 45, page 47. 

47. LONGEVITY PAY REQUESTS Destroy in office when released from all audits. 

48. MERIT AND SENIORITY SYSTEM RECORDS a) Destroy in office employee-specific records after 3 years. 29 CFR 1627.3 

b) Destroy in office system and plan records 1 year after no 
longer in effect. 

49. PERSONNEL ACTION NOTICES a) Transfer records as applicable to PERSONNEL RECORDS 
Records used to create or change information in the (OFFICIAL COPY) item 50, page 48. 
personnel records of individual employees concerning 
such issues as hiring, termination, transfer, pay grade, b) Destroy in office all remaining records 2 years from date 
position or job title, name change and leave. record was created, received, or the personnel action 

involved. 

*Records may be disposed of following minimum retention period only if released from audits or other official action (excluding litigation). If applicable, see 
Litigation Case File, STANDARD-1. ADM/NISTRATIONAND MANAGEMENT RECORDS, item30. 
**Records in this series that are more than 60 years old, or have severe conservation concerns, may be offered to the State Archives of North Carolina for 
Permanent transfer. 
t See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction "destroy when administrative value ends." Please use the space provided. 

47 



RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSITION 
SCHEDULE 

REGISTER OF DEEDS 

Issued By: 

NORTH CAF:CLINA 
r.:u::PARTMENT OF' 

CULTURAL 
~.ESOUr;,,CES 

North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources 
Division of Archives and Records 
State Archives of North Carolina 

Government Records Branch 

October 10, 2012 



CONTENTS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................................................................................................. ii 

MANAGING PUBLIC RECORDS IN NORTH CAROLINA ................................................................................................. iii 

AUDITS, LITIGATION AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTIONS ................................................................................................. vi 

DESTRUCTION OF PUBLIC RECORDS ............................................................................................................................ vii 

ELECTRONIC RECORDS: EMAIL, BORN DIGITAL RECORDS, AND DIGITAL IMAGING ................................................ viii 

MICROFILM ................................................................................................................................................................... x 

DISASTER ASSISTANCE ................................................................................................................................................. xi 

STAFF TRAINING ........................................................................................................................................................... xi 

STANDARD-1. ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS ............................................................................. ! 

STANDARD-2. BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLLRECORDS ........................................................................................ 14 

STANDARD-3. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT} RECORDS ..................................................................................... 23 

STANDARD-4. LEGAL RECORDS .................................................................................................................................. 30 

STANDARD-S. PERSONNEL RECORDS ........................................................................................................................ 34 

STANDARD-G. PUBLIC RELATIONS RECORDS ............................................................................................................. 53 

STANDARD-7. PROGRAM OPERATIONAL RECORDS .................................................................................................. 55 

REQUEST FORMS ......................................................................................................................................................... 72 

INDEX .......................................................................................................................................................................... 76 



Register of Deeds 
Records Retention and Disposition Schedule 

The records retention and disposition schedule and retention periods governing the records series listed herein are 
hereby approved. In accordance with the provision of Chapters 121 apd 132 of the General Statutes of North 
Carolina, it is agreed that the records do not and will not ha_ve further use or value for official business, research, 
or reference purposes after the respective retention periods specified herein and are authoriied to be destroyed 
or otherwise disposed of by the agency or official having cu'stody of them without further reference to or approval 
of either party to this agreement. However, records ~ubject to audit or those legally required for ongoing official 
proceedings must be retained untll released from such audits or official proceedings, notwithstanding the 
instructions of this schedule. Public records Including electronic records not listed in this schedule are not 
authorized to be destroyed. 

This local government agency and the Department of Cultural Resources agree that certain records series possess 
only brief administrative, fiscal, legal, research, and reference value. These records series have been designated by 
retention periods which allow these records to be destroyed when {{administrative value ends." The local 
government agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention 
periods for the records that Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction udestroy when 
administrative value ends." If an office does not establish internal policies and retention periods, the office is not 
complying with the provisions of this retention schedule and is not authorized by the Department of Cultural 
Resources to d?stroy the records with the disposition instruction "destroy when administrative value ends." 

It is further agreed that these records may not be destroyed prior to the time periods stated; however, for 
sufficient reason they may be retained for longer periods. This schedule is to remain in effect from the date of 
approval until it is reviewed and updated. 

----------A-PPROVAL RECOMMEN~~ 't_ • llo~ 
Register of Deeds 

APPROVED 

Chairman 

Board of County Commissioners 

October 101 2012 

Sarah E. Koonts, Director 
Division of Archives and Records 

~~A~ 
iffaA:Carlisle, 'Secretary 

Department of Cultural Resources 

Nam~ of County 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

../ According to G.S. §121-5 and G.S. §132-3, you may only destroy public records with 
the consent of the Department of Cultural Resources {OCR). The State Archives of 
North Carolina is the division of OCR charged with administering a records 
management program. This schedule is the primary way the State Archives of North 
Carolina gives its consent. Without approving this schedule, your agency is obligated 
to obtain the State Archives of North Carolina's permission to destroy any record, no 
matter how insignificant . 

../ Each record series listed on this schedule has specific disposition instructions which 
will indicate how long that series must be kept in your offices. In some cases, the 
disposition instructions are simply 11Retain in office permanently/' which means that 
those records must be kept in your offices forever. In other cases, the retention 
period may be {{destroy in office when administrative value ends." Administrative 
value is defined as, uthe usefulness of records to support ancillary operations and 
the routine management of an organization." Your agency must establish and 
enforce internal policies by setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
the State Archives of North Carolina has scheduled with the disposition instructions, 
11destroy when administrative value ends." 

../ Email is a record as defined by G.S. §121-5 and G.S. §132. It is the content of the 
email that is critical when determining the retention period of a particular email, 
including attachments not the media in which the records were created. Email 
should be retained in the same manner as its paper counterpart. It is important for 
all agency employees and officials to determine the appropriate record series for 
specific emails and retain them according to the disposition instructions . 

../ The State Archives of North Carolina recommends that all county employees and 
officials take our online tutorials in order to familiarize themselves with records 
management principles and practices. The State Archives of North Carolina's online 
tutorials include topics such as records management, utilizing the retention 
schedule, email management, and scanning guidelines . 

../ The State Archives of North Carolina provides microfilming of the minutes of major 
decision-making boards and commissions. The State Archives will also microfilm 
Plats for the register of deeds. Once those records are filmed, we will store the 
silver negative (original) in our security vault . 

../ There is a nominal fee for filming and duplicating film. Contact the Records 
Management Analyst assigned to your county for the most current information. 

ii 



MANAGING PUBLIC RECORDS IN NORTH CAROLINA 

Q. What is this "records retention and disposition schedule"? 

A. This document is a tool for the registers of deeds and their staff across the state to use when managing 
the records in their offices. It lists records commonly found in register of deeds offices, and gives an 
assessment of their value by indicating when (and if) those records should be destroyed. This schedule is 
also an agreement between your office and the State Archives of North Carolina. 

This schedule serves as the inventory and schedule that the State Archives of North Carolina is directed by 
G.S. §121-5 (c) and G.S. §132-8 to provide. It supersedes all previous editions, including all amendments. 

Q. How do I get it approved? 

A. This schedule must be approved by the local Board of County Commissioners. The Chairman of the Board 
of County Commissioners should indicate approval by signing the agreement of this schedule. This 
approval should be made in a regular meeting and recorded as an action in the minutes. It may be done 
as part of the consent agenda, by resolution, or other action. 

Q. Do I have to have all of the records listed on this schedule? 

A. No. This is not a list of records you must have in your office. 

Q. What is the definition of "administrative value 11 ? 

A. Administrative value is defined as, 11the usefulness of records to support ancillary operations and the 
routine management of an organization." Records having administrative value are generally considered 
useful or relevant to the activities that caused the record to be created and/or during an audit ofthose 
activities. Traditionally, records managers have seen ~~administrative value" as transitory. (From Richard 
Pearce-Moses, A Glossary of Archival and Records Terminology) 

Q. What do I do with routing slips, fax cover sheets, reference copies, 
memory aids, reservations and confirmations, etc.? 

A. According to North Carolina General Statutes §121 and §132, every document, paper, letter, map, book, 
photograph, film, sound recording, magnetic or other tape, electronic data processing record, artifact, or 
other documentary material, regardless of physical form or characteristic, made or received in connection 
with the transaction of public business by any state, county, municipal agency, or other political 
subdivision of government is considered a public record and may not be disposed of, erased, or destroyed 
without specific guidance from the State Archives of North Carolina. The State Archives of North Carolina 
recognizes that many records exist that may have very short-term value to the creating agency. These 
records may be destroyed or otherwise disposed of when their reference value ends. However, all public 
employees should be familiar with specific records retention and disposition schedules and applicable 
guidelines for their office and the Public Records law (G.S. §132). When in doubt about whether a record 
has short-term value, or whether it has special significance or importance, retain the record in question. 

Q. Do the standards correspond to the organizational structure of my 
office? 

A. Standards are grouped together to make it easier for users to find records. You may find that the records 
groupings reflect according to the organizational structure of your office, or you may find that records are 
located in various standards depending on the content of the record. The intent of the schedule's 
organization is to provide an easy reference guide for the records created in your office. 

Q. I can't find some of my records on this schedule. 

A. Sometimes the records are listed in a different standard than how you organize them in your office. Be 
sure to check the Index and utilize the 11Search box" function on the PDF version of the schedule. If you 

iii 



still cannot locate your records on the schedule, then contact the Records Management Analyst assigned 
to your county. We will work with you to amend this records schedule to include records so that you may 
destroy them appropriately. 

Q. What are public records? 

A. The General Statutes of North Carolina, Chapter §132, provides this definition of public records: 

"Public record" or "public records" shall mean all documents, papers, letters, maps, books, 
photographs, films, sound recordings, magnetic or other tapes, electronic data- processing records, 
artifacts, or other documentary material, regardless of physical form or characteristics, made or 
received pursuant to law or ordinance in connection with the transaction of public business by any 
agency of North Carolina government or its subdivisions. Agency of North Carolina government or its 
subdivisions shall mean and include every public office, public officer or official (State or local, elected 
or appointed), institution, board, commission, bureau, council, department, authority or other unit of 
government of the State or of any county, unit, special district or other political subdivision of 
government. 

Q. Can anyone see my records? 

A. Yes, except as restricted by specific provisions in state or federal law. G.S. §132-6 instructs: 

"Every custodian of public records shall permit any record in the custodian 1s custody to be inspected 
and examined at reasonable times and under reasonable supervision by any person, and shall, as 
promptly as possible, furnish copies thereof upon payment of any fees as may be prescribed by law . 
... No person requesting to inspect and examine public records, or to obtain copies thereof, shall be 
required to disclose the purpose or motive for the request." 

Q. What about my confidential records? 

A. Not all government records are open to public inspection. Exceptions to the access requirements in G.S. 
§132-6 and the definition of public records in G.S. §132-1 are found throughout the General Statutes. You 
must be able to cite a specific provision in the General Statutes or federal law when you restrict or deny 
access to a particular record. 

Q. Do I have to make copies of drafts available to the public that haven't 
been approved? 

A. Yes, even if a report, permit, or other record has not been finalized. Any record that is not confidential by 
law must be copied when a request is received, whether it is "finished" or not. 

Q. What do I do with permanent records? 

A. Permanent records should be maintained in the office that created the records, forever. Permanent 
records must also have a preservation duplicate, which is either a paper or microfilm copy. 

Q. What is historical value? 

A. Historical records document significant events, actions, decisions, conditions, relationships, and similar 
developments. These records have administrative, legal, fiscal, or evidential importance for the 
government or its citizens. Call the Records Management Analyst assigned to your county for further 
assistance. 

Q. I don't have any records. 

A. Nearly every position in government generates, receives, or uses records. Computer files of any kind, 
including drafts and email, are public records. Even if your records aren't the official or final version, your 
records are public records. Not all records have high historical, legal, or fiscal value, but they all must be 
retained or destroyed in accordance with the provisions of the appropriate records schedule. 

iv 



Q. May I store our unused records in the basement (attic, outdoor shed}? 

A. Public records are public property. While we encourage offices to find places to store records that do not 
take up too much valuable office space, the selected space should be dry, secured, and free from pests 
and mold. Your office must ensure that records stored away from your main office area are well 
protected from natural and man-made problems, while remaining readily available to your staff and the 
public. 

Q. Our old records are stored in the attic, basement or off-site building, 
etc. Do we have to let anyone who asks see them? 

A. Yes, as long as the records are not confidential by law. You should also be aware that confidentiality can 
expire. 

Q. Aren't all of our old records at the State Archives of North Carolina? 

A. Probably not. The State Archives of North Carolina collects only very specific types of records from county 
offices. Contact the Records Management Analyst assigned to your county for more information about 
which records are held or can be transferred to the State Archives of North Carolina for permanent 
preservation. 

Q. I found some really old records. What should I do with them? 

A. Call the Records Management Analyst assigned to your county. We will help you examine the records and 
assess their historical value. 

Q. Can I give my old records to the historical society or public library? 

A. Before you offer any record to a historical society, public library, or any other entity, you must contact the 
Records Management Analyst assigned to your county. Permanent records must be kept either in your 
offices or at the State Archives of North Carolina. 

Q. Whom can I call with questions? 

A. If you are located west of about Statesville, call our Western Office in Asheville at (828) 296-7230 
extension 224. East of Statesville, all the way to the coast, call our Raleigh office at (919) 807-7350. 

v 



AUDITS, LITIGATION 
AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTIONS 

No record involved in a pending audit, legal or other official action may be 
destroyed before that audit or action is resolved. 

We have used an asterisk(*) in the disposition instructions to mark records series that are commonly 
audited, litigated or may be subject to other official actions; however, any record has this potential. 
Records custodians are responsible for being aware of potential actions, and for preventing the 
destruction of any record that is, or may be reasonably expected to become, involved in an audit, legal 
or other official action. 

Records used during routine audits may be destroyed when the governing body accepts the audit, if 
the records have completed the retention period listed in this schedule. If time remains in the retention 
period, the records must be maintained for the remainder of the period. The auditor's working papers 
must be kept according to the schedule. (See AUDITS: PERFORMANCE Item 4, page 2 and AUDITS: 
FINANCIAL Item 5, page 14.) Should a dispute arise over an audit, the records that were audited should 
be retained until that dispute is resolved. 

The attorney representing the register of deeds should inform records custodians when legal matters 
are concluded and records will no longer be needed. Following the conclusion of any legal action, the 
records may be destroyed if they have met the retention period in the schedule. Otherwise, they should 
be kept for the remaining time period. 

vi 



( 

Attachment #4.C. 

Tax Administration 
Records Retention Schedule Amendment 

Amending the Tax Administration Records Retention and Disposition Schedule published April 17, 2013. 

STANDARD 5. PERSONNEL RECORDS 

Amending item 19 Employee Eligibility Records as shown on substitute page 36. 

STANDARD 12. PROGRAM RECORDS: BUSINESS AND OTHER TAX RECORDS 

Adding item 3 Excise Tax Records as shown on substitute pages 72 and 73. 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 

Tax Assessor/Collector/ Administrator 

APPROVED 

Chairman, Bd. County Commissioners 

September 3, 2013 

Sarah E. Koonts, Director 
Division of Archives and Records 

~~~~eft~ 
Department of Cultural Resources 

County 



STANDARD-S. PERSONNEL RECORDS 
ITEM# 

RECORD SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION 

18. EMPLOYEE EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM Destroy in office 3 years after completion, denial, repayment, 
RECORDS or removal from program.* 
Includes records requesting tuition assistance, 
repayments, and other related records. 

See also PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY) item 
45, page 43. 

19. EMPLOYEE ELIGIBILITY RECORDS a) Destroy in office certificates, 1-9 forms, and statements, 3 8 USC 274a.2 
Includes the United States Immigration and years after individual was hired or 1 year from date of 
Naturalization Services, Employment Eligibility separation, whichever occurs later. 
Verification (1-9) forms. 

b) Destroy in office registers after 2 years. 

20. EMPLOYEE EXIT INTERVIEW RECORDS Destroy in office after 1 year. 

See also PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY) item 
45, page 43. 

21. EMPLOYEE HEALTH CERTIFICATES a) Transfer records as applicable to PERSONNEL RECORDS 29 CFR 1602.31 
Includes health or physical examination reports, or (OFFICIAL COPY) item 45, page 43. 
certificates created in accordance with Title VII and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). b) Destroy in office all other records 2 years after resolution 

of all actions. 

*See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTIONS, page vi. 
t See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction "destroy when administrative value ends." Please use the space provided. 

36 



STANDARD-12. PROGRAM OPERATIONAl RECORDS: BUSINESS AND OTHER TAX RECORDS. Records received and created by county tax offices in order to 
meet all statutory requirements. Comply with applicable provisions of G.S. §153A-148.1 regarding confidentiality of local tax records that contain information 
about a taxpayer's income or gross receipts. 

STANDARD-12: PROGRAM RECORDS: BUSINESS AND OTHER TAX RECORDS 

ITEM# 

RECORD SERIES TITlE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION 

1. ANIMAl liCENSE RECORDS Destroy in office after 3 years.* 
Records concerning the payment of license fees. 

2. BEER AND WINE liCENSE TAX RECORDS Destroy in office 3 years after expiration.* G.S. §105-113.78 

Issuance and payment records concerning licenses to G.S. §105-113.88 

sell alcohol. 

3. EXCISE TAX RECORDS Destroy in office after 3 years.* 
Records concerning the assessing and collecting of 
excise taxes, including land transfer taxes. 

4. GOING-OUT-OF-BUSINESS liCENSES Destroy in office 1 year after expiration. G.S. §66-77 

Licenses granted to business to hold going out of 
business, water and smoke damage, and distress sales. 

5. HEAVY EQUIPMENT TAX Destroy in office after 3 years.* 

6. MOTOR VEHIClE RENTAl TAX Destroy in office after 3 years.* 

7. PREPARED FOOD AND BEVERAGE TAX Destroy in office after 3 years. G.S. §160A-480.3 

*See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTIONS, page vi. 
t See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction "destroy when administrative value ends." Please use the space provided. 

72 



STANDARD-12: PROGRAM RECORDS: BUSINESS AND OTHER TAXRECORDS 

ITEM# 

RECORD SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION 

8. PRIVILEGE LICENSE CITATION RECORDS Destroy in office after 3 years. 
Records documenting citations issued by license 
inspectors for non-compliance with business license 
requirements. 

9. PRIVILEGE LICENSES Destroy in office 3 years after license expires. G.S. §105-33 

Records documenting the county's issuance of G.S. §105-37.1 

business privilege and license renewal notices, G.S. §105-38.1 

receipts, and periodic reports. G.S. §105-40 
G.S. §105-105 

10. ROOM OCCUPANCY TAX Destroy in office after 3 years. G.S. §160A-480.3 

*See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTIONS, page vi. 
t See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction "destroy when administrative value ends." Please use the space provided. 

73 



Vanceboro Rescue Squad, Inc. 
Post Office Box 439 

Vanceboro, North Carolina 28586 
 

 

September 22, 2013  

 
Mr. Stanley Kite 
Craven County Emergency Services Director 
406 Craven Street 
New Bern, North Carolina 28560 
 
Regarding:  2013 DOI Rescue Fund Grant Application 
 
Stanley, 
 
The squad is going to apply for a DOI Rescue Fund Grant for the following items:  one (1) Lifepak 
15 Monitor/Defibrillator, two (2) stair-chair patient lifting device, twenty-four (24) 
reflective/protective coats, twenty-four (24) pair of protective EMS pants, and two (2) portable 
suction units.  The total of the equipment is $50,000.00 with DOI funding $25,000 through the grant. 
 
This application is very similar to the application we made to DOI last year but did not receive.  We 
scored 812 points with 796 points being the funding cutoff.  The main item in the grant is the Lifepak 
15 monitor/defibrillator which will cost approximately $35,000.00.  We would like to phase out our 
(4) Lifepak 12 units over the next few years before they are too old to be covered by a service 
contract by the manufacturer.  Our first two Lifepak 12’s are more than 12 years old. 
 
We are requesting the County match the DOI grant, if funded, as previously noted in our 2013-2014 
budget request. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Keith A. Morris 
Captain 
 



/ 
I 

CERTIFICATION OF THE AVAILABILITY OF REQUIRED NONFEDERAL 
MATCH FOR OAA TITLE III-D HEALTH PROMOTION SERVICES 

It is understood that the following required 10 percent nonfederal match will be used to match 
Title 111-D Health Promotion funds in SFY 2013 and will not be used to match any other 
federal or state funds during the contract period: 

SFY 2014 

111-D Budget Request $ 

Required 10% Match $ 

Total SFY $ 
Projected Budget 

6,949 

772 

7,721 

(]]Cash Match p In-Kind · 
(Check one 

_j_/n~ ·_.,/:)_ :~~ ...... ) <-··· -

(Authorized sigfif"'ture) 

Director, Craven County Department of Social Sen 

(Title) 

(Date)' 



DISTRIBUTION: 

ORIGINAL: FINANCE 
DUPLICATE: DEPARTMENT 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

1. Fund: General ---------------------------------- 2. Department: OSS 7295 Senior 

3. Revenue Account Number(s) Amount 4. Expenditure Account Number(s) Amount 
101-7295-377.55-00 Title 1110 Hlth Prom -457.00 101-7295-450.39-37 Title 1110 Hlth Prom -308.00 
101-0000-399.01-00 Fund Balance -51.00 101-7295-450.25-37 TraveiiiiO Hlth Prom -200.00 

Total: -508.00 Total: -508.00 

Justification or Explanation of Change: 

Adjusting line items to agree with contracted amounts from Eastern Carolina Council of Governments (ECC) for the Title 1110 Health 
Promotion grant less than originally anticipated amount. Funds are 90% reimbursed, with 10% County match. 

~UtY4 dp:b. /1/C¥\llt 
Department Head Date County Manager Date 

County Commissioners/Chairman Date Journal Entry Number Date 

FINBA- Revised 010907 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 10/07/2013 

TAXPAYER NAME 

AFFILIATED MEDICAL GROUP PLLC 
NOT IN BUSINESS 1/1/2013 

ANDERSON, DAVID & ROSA ANNA 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

ANDERSON, JACKIE L JR 

ACCT#/TICKET# 

0078945 2013-0000335 

0058055 2013-0001107 

0065569 2013-0001172 
DRAINAGE FEE BILLED TWICE SAME ACCT 

ANDERSON, PAUL F III & ROSEMAR 
VALUE CORRECTION 

0019880 2013-0001263 

ANGE, RODNEY D & JANET A 0169025 2013-0001378 
LAND CONSOLIDATION-TO REBILL 

ATLANTIC SURVEY & DESIGN PA 0043365 2013-0001926 
INCORRECT SITUS-TO BE REBILLED 

BAILEY, BRENT HARRIAN 0018409 2013-0002269 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

BARNEY, WESLEY T & BONNIE L 0075672 2013-0002994 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2013 

BASTIAN, TIMOTHY 0095997 2013-0003294 
CORRECTED VALUATION OF BOAT 

BAUM, BENJAMIN A & CHARNA G 0072622 2013-0003467 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2013 

BECTON, CAROL B & JAMES E 0042330 2013-0003784 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2005 

BEERY, WILLIAM S & ELLEN S 0054231 2013-0003871 
RECYCLE FEE CHARGED TWICE SAME ACCT 

BEHRMANN, EDITH ANN 0093477 2013-0003883 
RECYCLE FEE CHARGED TWICE SAME ACCT 

BENNETT, MICHAEL SCOTT 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

0082030 2013-0004359 

PAGE 1 

AMOUNT 

55.71 

81.57 

5.00 

27.86 

606.07 

163.21 

58.77 

111.70 

22.74 

51.35 

36.00 

36.00 

36.00 

87.55 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 10/07/2013 

TAXPAYER NAME 

BROADWAY, JO ANN H ET AL 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

BROWN, AUGUSTUS HRS 

ACCT#/TICKET# 

0095459 2013-0006673 

0877050 2012-0006945 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

BROWN, DAVID A 0090955 2013-0006892 
RECYCLE FEE CHARGED TWICE SAME ACCT 

BRYANT, DEBORAH TYNDALL 0094770 2013-0090230 
INCORRECT SITUS-NOT TRENT WOODS 

BRYSON, FRANCES A 1001040 2013-0007608 
REMOVED SCE IN ERROR 

BUCK, FRANCIS LEROY & LUNETTE 0001719 2013-0090242 
DOUBLE LISTED WITH SAME ACCOUNT # 

BUSHMEN, JENNIFER 0077572 2013-0090262 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2013 

BUSHMEN, JENNIFER 0077572 2012-0008276 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2012 

CHURCH-CHURCH OF REFUGE BY TRU 0034141 2013-0010249 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CLARK, GAIL M 0078101 2013-0010559 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

DAUGHTRY, NATHAN LYNWOOD 0082847 2013-0013547 
INCORRECT SITUS-TO BE REBILLED 

DAVIS, DENNIS 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2013 

DAVIS, DOUGLAS DARRELL JR 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 56632 

DAVIS, THELMA & RHEM, JAMES 
DWELLING NOT LIVABLE 

0073345 2013-0090432 

0082389 2012-0014109 

1765775 2013-0013906 

AMOUNT 

792.63 

21.76 

36.00 

1. 33 

209.05 

163.83 

44.40 

94.56 

31.50 

137.08 

117.78 

486.27 

6.61 

36.00 

2 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 3 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 10/07/2013 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

DAVIS, THELMA R 1765770 2013-0013915 36.00 
DWELLING NOT LIVABLE 

DAVIS, THELMA R 1765770 2013-0013909 36.00 
DWELLING NOT LIVABLE 

DAVIS, THELMA R 1765770 2013-0013910 72.00 
DWELLING NOT LIVABLE 

DAVIS, THELMA R 1765800 2013-0013918 36.00 
DWELLING NOT LIVABLE 

DAVIS, THELMA R 1765800 2013-0013917 36.00 
DWELLING NOT LIVABLE 

DAVIS, THELMA R 1765800 2013-0013920 36.00 
DWELLING NOT LIVABLE 

DAWSON, BOOKER T 0031886 2005-0013457 50.67 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2005 

DAWSON, BOOKER T 0031886 2006-0013700 45.44 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2006 

DAWSON, BOOKER T 0031886 2007-0014092 40.96 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2007 

DAWSON, BOOKER T 0031886 2008-0014477 36.71 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2008 

DAWSON, BOOKER T 0031886 2009-0014404 22.85 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2009 

DAWSON, BOOKER T 0031886 2010-0013170 15.90 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2010 

DAWSON, BOOKER T 0031886 20ll-0014532 15.56 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/20ll 

DAWSON, BOOKER T 0031886 2012-00144ll 13.70 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2012 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 10/07/2013 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# 

DECKER, DAVID S 0036989 2013-0014229 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

DOWNING, MARTHA 0089063 2012-0015912 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2012 

DUNN, JOSEPH E 0045293 2013-0016018 
VEHICLE IS PLATED NOT PERSONAL PROP 

EASTER SEALS UCP NORTH CAROLIN 
EXEMPT PER GS 105-278.7 

0093478 2013-0016290 

ELDER, ETHEAL 0001327 2013-0016810 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

ELDER, ETHEAL 0001327 2012-0017299 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

ELDER, ETHEAL 0001327 2011-0017453 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

ELDER, ETHEAL 0001327 2010-0015841 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

ELDER, ETHEAL 0001327 2009-0017290 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

ELDER, ETHEAL 0001327 2008-0017260 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

ELDER, ETHEAL 0001327 2007-0016858 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

ELDER, ETHEAL 0001327 2006-0016387 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

ELDER, ETHEAL 0001327 2005-0016185 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

ELDER, ETHEAL 0001327 2004-0015488 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

279.77 

80.05 

1.97 

145.47 

46.07 

198.46 

314.19 

207.76 

67.74 

38.42 

114.00 

275.90 

112.35 

166.53 

4 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 5 

CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 10/07/2013 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# 

FESAK, MATTHEW 0065718 2013-0017908 147.21 
RELEASED TO WAKE COUNTY 

GATLIN, JANNELL S 0051837 2012-0021241 86.91 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

GENGLER, MAUREEN B 0092505 2013-0020732 36.00 
RECYCLE FEE CHARGED TWICE SAME ACCT 

HARDISON, RICHARD CASWELL 3090200 2013-0023591 1,635.92 
SENIOR EXCLUSION VALUE ERROR 

HAWKINS, ANNETTE 0090266 2013-0024784 .53 
DRAINAGE FEE BILLED TWICE SAME ACCT 

HAWKINS, GARY V 3252275 2013-0024820 .42 
DRAINAGE FEE BILLED TWICE SAME ACCT 

HILL, WILLIE MAE 0052887 2013-0026073 460.71 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

HYET, DOREEN A & FLOYD M III 0067222 2013-0027652 36.00 
RECYCLE FEE BILLED TWICE SAME ACCT 

HYMAN, LEWIS 3639200 2011-0028820 920.28 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

HYMAN, LEWIS 3639200 2009-0028523 175.02 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

HYMAN, LEWIS 3639200 2010-0026029 216.25 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

HYMAN, LEWIS 3639200 2012-0028693 445.22 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

HYMAN, LEWIS 3639200 2013-0027662 40.54 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

JOHNSON, LESLIE R 0025953 2013-0090694 476.34 
DOUBLE LISTED ON SAME ACCOUNT # 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 10/07/2013 

TAXPAYER NAME 

JONES, FRONNIE A III 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

KOONCE, ADAM THOMAS 
VALUE CORRECTION 

LAGLE, BRIDGIT DARLINE 

ACCT#/TICKET# 

0085165 2013-0029516 

0067384 2013-0031450 

0037585 2013-0090728 
CHARGED IN ERROR-RECYCLE REMOVED 

LANCASTER, CONNIE W 0044437 2013-0090730 
DRAINAGE FEE BILLED TWICE SAME ACCT 

LPS DEVELOPERS LLC 
MAPPING ERROR CORRECTION 

LPS DEVELOPERS LLC 
MAPPING ERROR CORRECTION 

LUCAS, CHRISTOPHER R & REBECCA 
VALUE CORRECTION 

MAZUREK, LOUIS J & SARA JEAN 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

MCCROCKLIN, ANDREW J & SUSAN A 

0057054 2013-0034035 

0057054 2013-0034034 

0045997 2013-0034162 

0085944 2013-0035877 

0083764 2013-0036397 
RECYCLE FEE CHARGED TWICE SAME ACCT 

MCNAMEE, PETER & NIDDA 0062334 2013-0037026 
RECYCLE FEE BILLED TWICE SAME ACCT 

MCNEIL, THELMA GODFREY HEIRS 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2009 

4855770 2013-0037041 

MINSK, ESTEBAN & MARGARET ANN 0072416 2013-0038132 
RECYCLE FEE CHARGED TWICE SAME ACCT 

MITCHELL, LOUISE H 0023167 2012-0039805 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/12 

MOZEL LLC 0082430 2010-0037107 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

36.00 

139.74 

36.00 

5.00 

22.20 

17.12 

29.11 

19.28 

36.00 

36.00 

36.00 

36.00 

368.13 

250.76 

6 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 10/07/2013 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# 

MOZEL LLC 0082430 2011-0041367 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

MOZEL LLC 0082430 2012-0041266 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

MOZEL LLC 0082430 2013-0039724 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

NMHG FINANCIAL SERVICES INC 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/13 

PAPPAS, SHELTON DALE 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

PDWOW LLC 
APPRAISAL CORRECTION 

0051632 2013-0090934 

5529049 2013-0042374 

0064491 2013-0042944 

PETSMART INC 2125-00 0088069 2013-0090989 
LATE LISTING FEE CHARGED IN ERROR 

REGISTER, REBECCA G 
APPRAISAL CORRECTION 

ROBERSON, LARRY R 
CHARGED LATE FEE IN ERROR 

RUBECK, SHAWN & TIFFANY 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

SEIJO, ANNE M ESTATE 
APPRAISAL CORRECTION 

SOUTHERN ARCHITECTURAL HARDWAR 
LATE LISTING ERROR 

SPRINGLEAF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2012 

SPRINGLEAF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2013 

0068026 2013-0045829 

0077212 2013-0046859 

0072140 2013-0047708 

0086805 2013-0049168 

0025551 2013-0091657 

0090426 2012-0053742 

0090426 2013-0051555 

AMOUNT 

583.24 

215.23 

190.01 

36.06 

36.00 

265.45 

300.88 

36.00 

62.10 

137.35 

36.00 

18.57 

862.13 

872.96 

7 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 10/07/2013 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# 

TOLER, PHYLLIS DALEY 7265400 2013-0054946 
APPRAISAL CORRECTION-TO BE REBILLED 

TURNAGE, ELIJAH T 7359300 2013-0055703 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 1999 

WELCH, BARBARA M 0061777 2013-0058014 
RECYCLE FEE BILLED TWICE SAME ACCT 

WOOLARD, JOHN T JR & CYNTHIA L 0031619 2013-0061260 
MAPPING CORECTION-TO BE REBILLED 

WYNN, JAMES MICHAEL 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

0085867 2013-0061588 

103 -CREDIT MEMO(S) 

AMOUNT 

108.00 

36.00 

36.00 

1,002.44 

90.74 

16,770.65 

8 



TAX805P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 1 
REFUNDS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 10/07/2013 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

BECTON, CAROL B & JAMES E 0042330 2008-0003757 36.00 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2005 

BECTON, CAROL B & JAMES E 0042330 2009-0003765 36.00 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2005 

BECTON, CAROL B & JAMES E 0042330 2010-0003525 36.00 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2005 

BECTON, CAROL B & JAMES E 0042330 20ll-0003861 36.00 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2005 

BECTON, CAROL B & JAMES E 0042330 2012-0003830 37.03 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2005 

DAVIS, DOUGLAS DARRELL JR 0082389 2009-0091654 42.25 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 56632 

DAVIS, DOUGLAS DARRELL JR 0082389 2010-0012978 8 .ll 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 56632 

DAVIS, DOUGLAS DARRELL JR 0082389 2011-0014229 6.89 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 56632 

8 -REFUND(S) 238.28 



Craven County Board of Commissioners
Craven County, North Carolina

COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN

Craven County Board of Commissioners
Craven County, North Carolina

COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN

7 October 2013

Presented By:
Timothy Downs, Director
Economic Development 



Project Background (a review)

 Reorganize and focus economic development in county

 Preserve and expand existing economic catalysts (Cherry 
Point/FRC East, Morehead City) in the region 

 Assess County’s role/place in regional and statewide economic 
development efforts

 Identify strategies to improve economic development 
implementation

 Define the implementation vehicle best suited to situation



Economic Development Goals

 Diversify the County’s industry base

 Target industries that match the labor pool

 Increase civilian job opportunities

 Be more competitive statewide for business attraction

 Encourage the creation of jobs earning above $40,000

 Create a business climate that minimizes regulatory obstacles

 Encourage unity of purpose to achieve common objectives

 Build/Maintain quality workforce and workforce education programs

 Enhance the sustainability of local military operations

 Grow existing businesses

 Foster entrepreneurialism



Target Industry Clusters

 Target industry clusters
 Advanced manufacturing
 Wood product manufacturing
 Order processing, data processing and back office
 Small-scale professional/technical services
 Primary/specialty health care and social assistance
 Aerospace (eg. F-35 operational allocation)

 Support structure
 Administrative services
 Logistics
 Business-to-business companies

 Collaborative efforts
 Agribusiness
 Tourism



 Workforce and Asset Development
 Create a development site inventory

 Market Development
 Establish a formal existing business retention program
 Proactive industry recruitment

 Organization
 Create new Economic Development Organization

 Regulatory Environment
 Develop your grant toolbox
 Consistent regulatory controls

 Marketing
 Outreach Initiatives

Recommendations



The Work Plan

0 – 6 Months
Launch Property Inventory online
Develop and Implement Retention Program
Create Interim Marketing Material/Packet
Assess Industrial Park parcels
Recruit



The Work Plan

0 – 6 Months
Launch Property Inventory online
Develop and Implement Retention Program
Create Interim Marketing Material/Packet
Assess Industrial Park parcels
Recruit

7 – 12 Months
Launch New ED Website
Pre-development work at Industrial Park
Incentive Program 
Recruit



The Work Plan

0 – 6 Months
Launch Property Inventory online
Develop and Implement Retention Program
Create Interim Marketing Material/Packet
Assess Industrial Park parcels
Recruit

7 – 12 Months
Launch New ED Website
Pre-development work at Industrial Park
Incentive Program 
Recruit

13 – 18 Months
Small Business Incubator
Implement Direct Marketing
Review local development regulations
Recruit



COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN



~ c D newbernprospector.com 

HEAT MAPS LAYERS COMPARE Ot.tus""" ?oov 

Find: 

II t. ~\\ l"'f"' 

~ 
Buildi'lg$ Si1os 9uslnosses Communitles 

Square Feet 

MIN SIZE - MAXSIZE 

~For Sale ~For Lease 

Select Type 

~ Office ~ Industrial 
lEI Retail 

IAORE FILTERS 

Results Refine search 

Print Sort by 

B&B Restaurant 

Address: 212 Pollod< Street 
City: NewBern 
County: Craven County 
Zip Code:28560 

Type Oflice, Retail 
l.tin Size:6,240 sqtt 
r.rax Size:6.240 sqtt 

Export Advanced 

Scott Tile & Carpets 
Building 
Address: 1301 Country Clu 
City: NewBern 
County: Craven County 
Zip Code:28562 

Type Office, Retail 
l.lin Size:S,SOO sqft 
l.lax Size:S.SOO sq!t 

Corner Broad and 
Fleet 
Address: Corner Broad an 
City: NewBern 
County: Craven County 
Zip Code:28562 

Type Office, Retail 
l.l in Size:200 sqtt 
l.iax Size:200 sqtt 

812 Pollock Street 

Address: 812 Pollod< Street 
City: NewBern 
County: Craven County 
Zip Code:28560 

Type Office. Retail 
l.lin Size:4.1 00 sqtt 
r,rax Size:4, 100 sqtt 

® 

MapdauC2013Google i!IIIDaofUu s...,aamaoerror 

Tools My Folder 

Viewing 1-6 of 15 Pages 1 121 3 of3 

Glen burnie 
Professional Center 
Address: 1425 South Glen 
City: NewBern 
County: Craven County 
Zip Code:28562 

Type· Office, Retail 
l.iin Size:1,025 sqft 
l.lax Size:1,025 sqtt 

GLENBURNIE ROAD 

Address: 1307 S. Glenbur 
City: NewBern 
County: Craven County 
Zip Code:28562 

Type Office, Retail 
l.lin Size:3,600 sqtt 
r.rax Size:3,600 sqtt 



JOINT RESOLUTION 
of 

CRAVEN COUNTY 
and 

TOWN OF TRENT WOODS 

WHEREAS, CRA YEN COUNTY ("County") has adopted those certain regulations more 
commonly refened to as the "Tall Structures Ordinance", currently codified as Appendix H of 
the Craven County Code of Ordinances ("Ordinance"), applicable within the unincorporated 
areas of Craven County; and 

WHEREAS, G.S. Section 153A-122 provides that a county ordinance may, upon 
resolution, be applicable within an incorporated municipality; and 

WHEREAS, the TOWN OF TRENT WOODS ("Town") desires that the Ordinance be 
applicable within the corporate limits of the Town, and to be administered and otherwise 
enforced by the County within the Town. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the parties as follows: 

-town seal-

1. The Ordinance shall be applicable within the Town upon the adoption of this 
Resolution by the last party to execute the same. 

2. Once effective within the Town, the County shall administer and otherwise 
enforce the Ordinance within the Town. 

3. This Resolution may subsequently be withdrawn and rescinded by either party 
upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other; and thereafter, the 
Ordinance shall cease to have application with the Town. 

Adopted this -·-'S.~day of i~-·' 2013 by the Town of Trent Woods. 

TOWN jJF TR}NT )VO~DS 

{A;Mi.A'()· ·~ 
Charles 'fyson, May 



JOINT RESOLUTION 

of 

CRAVEN COUNTY 
and 

THE TOWN OF RIVER BEND 

WHEREAS, CRAVEN COUNTY ("County") has adopted those certain regulations more 
commonly referred to as the "Tall Structures Ordinance", currently codified as Appendix H of 
the Craven County Code of Ordinances ("Ordinance"), applicable within the unincorporated 
areas of Craven County; and 

WHEREAS, G.S. Section 153A-122 provides that a county ordinance may, upon 
resolution, be applicable within an incorporated municipality; and 

WHEREAS, the TOWN OF RIVER BEND ("Town") desires that the Ordinance be 
applicable within the corporate limits of the Town, and to be administered and otherwise 
enforced by the County within the Town. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the parties as follows: 

1. The Ordinance shall be applicable within the Town upon the adoption of this 
Resolution by the last party to execute the same. 

2. Once effective within the Town, the County shall administer and otherwise 
enforce the Ordinance within the Town. 

3. This Resolution may subsequently be withdrawn and rescinded by either party 
upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other; and thereafter, the 
Ordinance shall cease to have application with the Town. 

Adopted this ~day ofjfl-* , 2013 by the Town of River Bend. 
/ 



ATTEST: 

~fLV Ann Katsuyoslii, Town cik 
-seal-

Adopted this __ day of ____ , 2013 by Craven County. 

ATTEST: 

Gwendolyn Bryan, Clerk 
-SEAL-

9\\\SERVER04\lssdocs\00000009\00043923.000.DOC 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

Scott C. Dacey, Chairman 

2 



Attachment #ll.B. 

Volunteer Board Information and Interest Sheet 
Craven County, North Carolina 

Na~f boa,rd, com ittee, authority, etc., in whicr you are interested. Please list in order of priority: 

~U, Df\ll L. · 

Name: 

Home Address: 

City: Zip Code: 

Township: City Limits: t::f Yes [] No 

Occupation: 

Place of Employment: 

E-Mail Address: 

_p,_______,l~.oo.o.-:;__,b=--.;_. __.c;~· f?~\)-4-~-#__,_g~L .::-=-4(-=-l~~...a...f:-..':'J)3usiness Phone:--+-tJ~A_..__ ____ _ 

N A Fax Number: f\) i) J..J J3 
tJ/1. 

(Please indicate your preferred contact number.) 

I '(R. · Co~~vc=sc 
Education 

Why do you want to serve? 

.& c fh~sc::: L J-1 AVL~ -r~'i~ ~~~~s~ I( Sc:.;JZif en m u.t.Ii p LC: 
I .1/7T5S L11M) b.ln.s ASt<E DJ't&Lt?:"t:c .. S lJ:;s:,i) ttJ .Se((\ltNC, KIC:: A.t 

Please List Other Local Re ional and Statewide Boards Committees or Commissions on Which You Serve 

~~AVE Lo l,Ac C. l '-.1 1 fRtJ C /viA 8~ AVE:_t-() t:_ tC 0cb>t0 ((5 /JSJV (SD {:C'~j 
,(1 oAR.<>) IY!El'./5Y1 ffi 0>, l..tC>c /I(L(s r;::::tL({~ US·..J fiNilr-l ee: Qoftl/ if>) 
(A resume may be attached to this form, but will not be accept din lieu of the form.) 

Date: t- f.a~J3 

The Craven County Board of Commissioners sincerely appreciates the interest of all citizens in serving their county. For 
more information on the responsibilities of various boards, you may view the on-line board descriptions or contact the 
County Clerk's Office at (252) 636-6601. RETURN FORM TO: CRAVEN COUNTY CLERK, 406 CRAVEN STREET, 
NEW BERN, NC 28560. The form may also be sent via e-mail (gbrvan@cravencountync.gov) or fax: (252) 637-0526. 

This form will remain active until two years after date received. 



Prepared by: 

Jimmie B. Hicks, Jr. 
Sumrell, Sugg, Carmichael, Hicks & Hart, P.A. 
416 Pollock Street 
New Bem, NC 28560 

NORTH CAROLINA 
CRAVEN COUNTY 

Tax Parcel No. 1-048-14003 
Revenue Stamps $0.00 

QUITCLAIM DEED 

THIS QUITCLAIM DEED, made this _ day of October, 2013, by and between 

CRAVEN COUNTY, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina ("Grantor"), 

whose mailing address is 406 Craven Street, New Bern, North Carolina 28560; to LESTER 

FORNES, an individual of the State of Nmih Carolina ("Grantee"), whose mailing address is 

--------------------------------------------------------, is as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

That said Grantor for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($1 0.00) and 

other good and valuable consideration to Grantor paid by the Grantee, the receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged, has remised and released, and by these presents does remise, release and forever 

quitclaim unto the Grantee, Grantee's successors and assigns, pursuant to N.C.G.S. Section 160A-

274, the following described property, which said property does not include the primary 

residence of the Grantor to wit: 

No Title Search 
No Opinion Render·ed 
Property Does Not Include a P1imary Residence 

Prepared by: 
Sumrell, Sugg, Cannichael, Hicks and Hart, P.A. 

Attomeys at Law 
416 Pollock Street 

New Bern, N01th Carolina 28560 



SEE EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HERETO 
AND INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above desc1ibed lot or parcel of land and all privileges and 

appurtenances thereunto belonging to the Grantee, Grantee's successors and assigns, free and 

discharged from all right, title, claim or interest of the said Grantor or anyone claiming by, through 

or under the Grantor. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, CRAVEN COUNTY has caused this instrument to be 

executed as its act and deed by the Chairman of its Board of Commissioners, attested by its Clerk, 

and its seal to be hereunto affixed, all by the authority of its Board of Commissioners, as of the day 

and year first above written. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

GWENDOLYNM. BRYAN, Clerk 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 

2 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

By: Scott C. Dacey, Chairman 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CRA YEN 

I, , Notary Public in and for said County and 
State, do hereby certify that on the __ day of October, 2013, before me personally appeared 
SCOTT C. DACEY, with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly sworn, says 
that he is the Chailman of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, and that 
GWENDOLYN M. BRYAN is the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, the 
body politic and corporate described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he knows 
the common seal of said body politic and corporate; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument 
is said common seal; that the name of the body politic and corporate was subscribed thereto by the 
said Chairman; that the said common seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of Commissioners 
of said body politic and corporate; and that the said instrument is the act and deed of said body 
politic and corporate. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the day of October, 2013. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

3 



EXHIBIT A 

All of that cetiain tract or parcel of land lying and being situate in Number One (1) Township, 
Craven County, North Carolina and being more pmiicularly described as follows: 

Being all of that cetiain propetiy conveyed to Craven County by Commissioner's Deed recorded 
July 2, 2013 in Book 3209, Page 584 in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Craven County, 
North Carolina. 

Subject to restrictive covenants and easements of record. 

9\\\SERVER04\lssdocs\000000ll \00045657.000.DOC 

4 



Prepared by: 

Jimmie B. Hicks, Jr. 
Sumrell, Sugg, Cam1ichael, Hicks & Hart, P.A. 
416 Pollock Street 
New Bern, NC 28560 

NORTH CAROLINA 
CRA YEN COUNTY 

Tax Parcel No. 5-008-134 
Revenue Stamps $0.00 

QUITCLAIM DEED 

THIS QUITCLAIM DEED, made this 7th day of October, 2013, by and between CRAVEN 

COUNTY, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina ("Grantor"); to WILBUR 

BOONE, an individual of the State of North Carolina ("Grantee"), whose mailing address is 

, is as follows: ----------------------------------------------------------------
WITNESSETH: 

That said Grantor for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00) and 

other good and valuable consideration to Grantor paid by the Grantee, the receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged, has remised and released, and by these presents does remise, release and forever 

quitclaim unto the Grantee, Grantee's successors and assigns, pursuant to N.C.G.S. Section 160A-

274, the following described property, which said property does not include the primary 

residence of the Grantor to wit: 

No Title Search 
No Opinion Rendered 

SEE EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HERETO 
AND INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE. 

Prepared by: 
Sumrell, Sugg, Cannichael, Hicks and Hatt, P.A. 

Attomeys at Law 
416 Pollock Street 

New Bem, North Carolina 28560 

Propetty Does Not Include a P1imary Residence 



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described lot or parcel ofland and all privileges and 

appurtenances thereunto belonging to the Grantee, Grantee's successors and assigns, free and 

discharged from all right, title, claim or interest of the said Grantor or anyone claiming by, through 

or under the Grantor. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, CRAVEN COUNTY has caused this instrument to be 

executed as its act and deed by the Chairman of its Board of Commissioners, attested by its Clerk, 

and its seal to be hereunto affixed, all by the authority of its Board of Commissioners, as of the day 

and year first above written. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

GWENDOLYN M. BRYAN, Clerk 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 

2 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

By: SCOTT C. DACEY, Chaim1an 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CRA YEN 

I, , Notary Public in and for said County and 
State, do hereby certify that on the __ day of October, 2013, before me personally appeared 
___________ , with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly 
sworn, says that he is the Chainnan of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, and that 
GWENDOLYN M. BRYAN is the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, the 
body politic and corporate desc1ibed in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he knows 
the common seal of said body politic and corporate; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument 
is said common seal; that the name of the body politic and corporate was subscribed thereto by the 
said Chaim1an; that the said common seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of Commissioners 
of said body politic and corporate; and that the said instrument is the act and deed of said body 
politic and corporate. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the __ day of October, 2013. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

3 



EXHIBIT A 

All of that ce1iain tract or parcel of land lying and being situate in Number Five (5) Township, 
Craven County, Nmih Carolina and being more pmiicularly described as follows: 

Being all of that certain prope1iy conveyed to Craven County by Commissioner's Deed recorded 
April 16, 2013 in Book 3186, Page 3 79 in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Craven County, 
North Carolina. 

Subject to restrictive covenants and easements of record. 

9\I\SERVER04\Jssdocs\OOOOOO 11 \00045777.000.00C 

4 



STATEOFNORTHCAROUNA 

COUNTY OF CRA YEN 

Attachment #12.C. 

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 
OF EXPRESS AND IMPLIED WARRANTIES 

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF EXPRESS AND IMPLIED 

WARRANTIES (hereinafter refen:ed to as the "Agreen1ent") is effective as of the _ day of 

____ , 2013, by and between CRAVEN COUNTY, a body politic and corporate of the 

State of North Carolina (hereinafter referred to as "Assignor"); and the TOWN OF RIVER 

BEND, a tnunicipal corporation of the State of Not1h Carolina (hereinafter refen:ed to as 

"Assignee"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Assignor is the owner of certain personal property (hereinafter refen:ed to as 

the "Propet1y") consisting of a sewer system and its components, more particularly identified in 

that certain agreement between the pm1ies entitled "lnterlocal Agreement Related to CDBG 

Sewer hnprovetnents - Grant #1 0-C-2220" (hereinafter refetTed to as the "Interlocal 

Agreetnent"); and, 

WHEREAS, Assignor recently concluded the construction of the sewer system as 

provided in the Interlocal Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Project"); and, 

WHEREAS, certain express and implied warranties cun:ently exist from various 

contractors, subcontractors and suppliers regarding the Project; and, 

WHEREAS, by bill of sale of even date hereof, Assignee has purchased the Property 

from Assignor, and in tum has requested that Assignor assignee to Assignee all express and 

implied warranties that may exist for the Project, and all component systems and subsysten1s 

thereof. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premtses and for and in 

consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and for and in consideration of other good 

and valuable considerations to each party by the other given, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

hereby are acknowledged, Assignor and Assignee agree as follows: 

1 ~ Assignor hereby does sell, assign, transfer and convey unto Assignee, Assignee's 

successors and assigns, all of Assignor's right, title, interest, powers, and privileges with respect 



to the any and all express or itnplied warranties existing with respect to the Project, and all 

cotnponent systetns and subsystetns thereof. 

2. To the extent any express or itnplied wananty owned or held by Assignor with 

respect to the Project is by its tenns not assignable, Assignor agrees to tnake detnand thereon 

upon the wanantor thereof, for the benefit of Assignee, upon the written request of Assignee. 

3. This Agreetnent shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 

hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

4. This Agreetnent shall be perfonned in the State of North Carolina. 

Notwithstanding the ptincipals of conflicts of law, the laws of the State of North Carolina shall 

govetn and control the validity, interpretation, perfom1ance and enforcen1ent of this Agreement. 

Exclusive venue for any action relating to this Agreement shall be instituted and prosecuted only 

in the coutis of Craven County, Notih Carolina. 

5. This Agreetnent and all documents and instruments executed in connection 

herewith may be amended, tnodified or suppletnented only by written instrun1ent executed by 

Assignor and Assignee. 

6. This Agreetnent is executed in duplicate otiginals. Assignor and Assignee each 

acknowledge receipt of one such original. Each original shall be admissible in any proceeding, 

legal or otherwise, without the production of the other original. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be 

executed in such form as to be binding, this day and year first above wtitten. 

BY: 

ATTEST: 

GWENDOLYN M. BRYAN, Clerk, 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 
[County Seal] 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

SCOTT C. DACEY, Chairman, 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 



ATTEST: 

Ann Katsuyoshi, Town Clerk 

[Town Seal] 

3S ·. SERVER04 ·lssdocs 000000 I 0 000-15-!-IO.OOO.DOCX 

TOWN OF RIVER BEND 

John Kirkland, Mayor 



NORTH CAROLINA 
BILL OF SALE 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

THIS BILL OF SALE, tnade and entered into this ___ dayof ____ , 2013, by and 

between CRAVEN COUNTY, a body of politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina 

(""Grantor~') to the TOWN OF RIVER BEND, a tnunicipal corporation of the State of North 

Carolina ("Grantee~') is as follows: 

W IT N E S S E T H: 

That Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($1 0.00) and other 

good and sufficient consideration to it in hand paid, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

and pursuant to its obligations under that certain agreetnent between the parties entitled "Interlocal 

Agreetnent Related to CDBG Sewer Improvements- Grant #10-C-2220" (hereinafter "lnterlocal 

Agreetnent"), has bargained and sold, and by these presents does bargain, sell, and convey unto the 

Grantee, certain articles of personal property, more particularly described as follows: 

All pipes, fixtures, lift stations, and all other article of personal property 
constituting the sewer improvements identified in the lnterlocal Agreement. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said personal property to Grantee in fee simple forever, subject 

to any and all matters existing of record in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Craven County 

and/or in the Office of the North Carolina Secretary of State. 

Grantee is acquiring the foregoing articles of personal property identified herein "as is" and 

"where is". Grantors hereby disclaim any and all warranties, whether implied or expressed, 

including but not limited to warranty of fitness for a particular purpose and warranty of 

tnerchantability. Provided, however, that in the event that Grantor has any warranties in the 

personal property, then Grantor hereby assigns such rights and warranties to the Grantee. 

Prepared by: 
Sumrell, Sugg, Carmichael, Hicks and Hart, P .A. 

Attorneys at Law 
416 Pollock Street 

New Bern, North Carolina 28560 



IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, Grantor has caused this Bill of Sale to be duly executed 

this the day and year first above written. 

BY: 

ATTEST: 

GWENDOLYN M. BRYAN, Clerk, 
Craven County Board of Com1nissioners 

[County Seal] 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

SCOTT C. DACEY, Chairman, 
Craven County Board of Co1nn1issioners 

I, , Notary Public in and for said County and State, do 
hereby certify that on the __ day of , 2013, before me personally appeared SCOTT 
C. DACEY, with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly sworn, says that he is 
the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, and that GWENDOLYN M. 
BRYAN is the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, the body politic and 
corporate described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he knows the common 
seal of said body politic and corporate; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is said 
common seal; that the name of the body politic and corporate was subscribed thereto by the said 
Chairman; that the said common seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of Commissioners of 
said body politic and corporate; and that the said instrument is the act and deed of said body politic 
and corporate. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the __ day of ____ , 2013. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

;\II\IISERVER04\b><locs\IHKKKHII1f~HK~5437.1KKJ.DOC"X 



Prepared by and Return to: 

Jimmie B. Hicks, Jr. 
Sumrell, Sugg, Carmichael, Hicks & Hart, P .A. 
416 Pollock Street 
New Ben1, NC 28560 

NORTH CAROLINA 
CRAVEN COUNTY 

Revenue Stamps: $0.00 

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF GRANTS OF EASEMENTS 

This ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF GRANTS OF EASEMENTS 

("Agreement"), made and entered into effective as of the_ day of ________ , 2013 

by and between CRAVEN COUNTY, a body politic and corporate of the State of North 

Carolina whose mailing address is 406 Craven Street, New Bern, North Carolina 28560 

("County"), and the TOWN OF RIVER BEND, a tnunicipal corporation of the State of Notih 

Carolina whose mailing address is 45 Shoreline Drive, River Bend, North Carolina, 28562 

("Town"), is as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, on or about November 28, 2011, the parties entered into that certain 

agreement entitled "Interlocal Agreement Related to CDBG Sewer Improvements- Grant #10-

C-2220" (hereinafter "Interlocal Agreement"); and, 

Prepared by 
Sumrell, Sugg, Carmichael, Hicks & Hart, P.A. 

Attorneys at Law 
416 Pollock Street 

New Bern, North Carolina 28560 



WHEREAS, in the furtherance of its obligations thereunder, the County entered into a 

nUinber of tetnporary and pennanent easen1ents, said easetnents providing that the County could 

assign the satne to third-parties; and, 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of its obligations under the Interlocal Agreetnent, the County 

desires to assign all of its rights and responsibilities in said easements entered into in furtherance 

of its obligations under the Interlocal Agreetnent to the Town; and the Town desires to accept 

such assignment of all of the County's rights and responsibilities in said easetnents, all upon the 

tenns and conditions set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the 1nutual promises and covenants 

herein contained, County and Town hereby agree as follows: 

1. Effective as of the date this Agreement is recorded in the Office of the Register of 

Deeds of Craven County (the "Assignment Date"), the County does hereby assign, transfer, and 

set over unto Town all of the County's right, title, and interest in, to and under the easements 

identified in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter 

"Original Easements"). 

2. Effective as of the Assignment Date, the Town hereby assumes and agrees to 

perform all of the terms, covenants, agreen1ents, conditions, and obligations of the Original 

Easements on the part of the County to be kept, observed, and performed, with the same force 

and effect as if the Town had originally been the grantee under the Original Easements; and 

agrees that it shall from and after the Assignment Date be liable to the original grantors and their 

respective heirs, successors and assigns, for any failure to keep, observe, or perform the same. 

3. To the extent allowed by law, the Town agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold 

harmless the County and its officials, employees, and agents frotn and against any and all 

2 



liabilities, clain1s, suits, actions, losses, dan1ages, penalties, costs, and expenses (including, 

without litnitation, reasonable attorneys~ fees and disbursetnents) due to or arising out of or 

related to the Town's use or possession of the Original Easetnents assigned by virtue of this 

Agreetnent, the exercise by Town of any rights with respect to the Original Easements, and/or 

any failure on the pati of the Town to keep, observe, and perfonn under the Original Easetnents 

with respect to any period from and after the Assignn1ent Date. 

4. To the extent allowed by law, the County agrees to indetnnify, defend, and hold 

harmless Town and its officials, employees and agents frmn and against any and all liabilities, 

claims, suits, actions, losses, damages, penalties, costs, and expenses (including, without 

limitation, reasonable attotneys' fees and disbursetnents) due to or arising out of or related to the 

County's use or possession of the easement pursuant to the Original Easetnents, the exercise by 

the County of any rights with respect to the Original Easen1ents, and/or any failure on the part of 

the County to keep, observe, and perfonn the terms, covenants, agreements, conditions, and 

obligations of the Original Easen1ents on the part of the County to be kept, observed, and 

perfonned with respect to any period prior to the Assignment Date. 

5. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Town, the County, and 

their respective successors and assigns. It shall create no rights in other third-parties. 

6. The County represents and warrants that the Original Easements currently are in 

full force and effect, and constitutes the entire agreement between the original grantors and the 

County. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the patiies have executed this Agreement in such fotm as to 

be binding the day and year first above written. 

3 



BY: 

ATTEST: 

GWENDOLYN M. BRYAN, Clerk, 
Craven County Board of Comtnissioners 
[County Seal] 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

SCOTT C. DACEY, Chairman, 
Craven County Board of Co1nn1issioners 

I, , Notary Public in and for said County and State, do 
hereby certify that on the __ day of , 2013, before tne personally appeared SCOTT 
C. DACEY, with whon1 I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly sworn, says that he is 
the Chaim1an of the Board of Conunissioners for Craven County, and that GWENDOLYN M. 
BRYAN is the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, the body politic and 
corporate described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he knows the common 
seal of said body politic and corporate; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is said 
common seal; that the nmne of the body politic and corporate was subscribed thereto by the said 
Chairman; that the said common seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of Cotnmissioners of 
said body politic and corporate; and that the said instrument is the act and deed of said body politic 
and corporate. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the __ day of ____ , 2013. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

4 



ATTEST: 

Ann Katsuyoshi, Town Clerk 

[Town Seal] 

NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY -----

TOWN OF RIVER BEND 

John Kirkland, Mayor 

I, , a Notary Public of the aforementioned County and 
State, do hereby certify that ANN KA TSUYOSHI personally appeared before me this day and 
acknowledged that she is the Clerk of the Town of River Bend, a municipal corporation of the 
State of North Carolina, existing by virtue of the laws of the State of North Carolina, and that by 
authority duly given and as the act of the Town of River Bend, the foregoing instrument was 
signed in its name by its Mayor, sealed with its corporate seal, and attested by herself as its 
Clerk. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal, this ___ day of _______ , 2013. 

My Commission Expires: 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

9\\ \SERVER04\lssdocs\OOOOOO 1 0\00045438.000.DOC 

5 



EXHIBIT "A" 
Original Easetnents Assigned by Craven County to Town of River Bend 

The following easetnents, recorded in the Craven County Registry, and which easetnents are 
incorporated herein by reference, are hereby assigned frotn Craven County to the Town of River 
Bend: 

Deed Book Page Nutnber Original Grantor(s) 

3116 312 Jan1es D. Jones 
3116 361 Bruce & Rose Jones 
3116 332 Mary Elizabeth Mattocks 
3116 343 Reginald Hardamon 
3116 339 David & Margaret McKeon 
3116 372 Brian & Sheryl Harris 
3116 368 Donald & Elaine J arn1on 
3231 478 Joyce Dawson Henry 
3116 357 Richard & Vivian Dean 
3116 354 David Allan Barteau 
3116 365 Kenneth Wayne Mills 
3116 323 Florence Mathis 
3116 301 Edward Wilson 
3116 315 Cynthia Lewis Davis 
3116 346 Christopher & Tamyra Walbert 
3116 309 Ralph Kilmer 
3116 319 Benard & Cassandra Bush 
3116 305 Shawn & Tonya Willian1s 
3116 335 Brandon & Monique Taylor 
3116 350 James & Dorothy Wiggins 
3116 327 Margaret Efird Edwards 

6 


	Agenda20131007
	Attachment #3.A
	Attachment #3.B
	Attachment #4.A
	Attachment #4.B
	Attachment #4.C
	Attachment #6
	Attachment #7
	Attachment #8
	Attachment #10.A
	Attachment #11.B
	Attachment #12.A
	Attachment #12.B
	Attachment #12.C



